December 2, 2015 – Supplemental Responses on behalf of the Redevelopment Authority of the City of Coatesville to Additional Questions for the Site Characterization and Environmental Assessment Request for Proposal (DEPG Redevelopment Project)
 Responses in black text relative to the Scope of Work are derived from the information shared among the Redevelopment Authority, the Redeveloper’s development team, and Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (PA DEP) staff. All work to be performed under the Contract extended to the consultant whose Proposal is selected by the RDA must comply with applicable laws and regulations.

1. The RFP does not indicate that the groundwater investigation activities must be overseen by a Pennsylvania-licensed professional geologist. This is required by Pennsylvania professional licensing laws. Also, depending on the scope of remedial actions proposed in the Cleanup Plan, this document may need to be prepared under the direction of a licensed professional engineer. THE BIDDER MUST COMPLY WITH REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PG/PE.

2. It will not be possible to obtain off-site access, perform all soil, soil gas and groundwater sampling and analysis, and submit the reports within the 30 days stipulated in the RFP. The scope of work includes quarterly monitoring for a two-year period. PROPOSE AN ALTERNATIVE SCHEDULE AND IDENTIFY ASSUMPTIONS, IN BASE BID. 

3. Section 1.1 indicates both 10 and 12 post-excavation samples. Which number is correct? 12.

4. The RFP indicates that development will “establish a filter pack around the well screen.” This is technically incorrect. PROPOSE SOLUTION/CORRECTION IN BASE BID.

5. For clarification, DEP does not require a vapor intrusion evaluation for all buildings within 100 feet of the source area. It requires a vapor intrusion study when there are buildings within 100 feet of the source area. RESPOND TO RFP AS WRITTEN, BIDDERS FAILING TO RESPOND TO RFP REQUIREMENTS UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED IN THESE RESPONSES, WILL BE DEEMED NON-RESPONSIVE AND ELIMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION.

6. Section 1.2.2 references DEP storage tank parameters, then goes on to list VOCs, SVOCs, metals and PCBs. Clarification is needed to ascertain what parameters are required. REFER TO PADEP’S SHORT LIST OF PETROLEUM PARAMETERS.

7. Section 1.2.3 indicates that “up to 3” monitoring wells are to be installed. Should we assume three wells in our proposal? YES. 

8. The RFP indicates more than once that DEP doesn’t require vapor intrusion potential to be evaluated for vacant buildings. This is incorrect based on our experience. DEP requires that vapor intrusion potential be evaluated for both existing AND FUTURE buildings. PROPOSE SOLUTION/CORRECTION AS AMENDMENT TO BASE BID’S SCOPE OF WORK, INCLUDE EFFORT/COST IN SECTION ENTITLED “PROPOSED CORRECTIONS/ADDITIONS TO BASE BID SCOPE OF WORK”, AND TOTALIZE AMENDMENT COSTS AS ADDITION TO PRICE FOR BASE BID.   

9. Section 1.3.3 indicates that “up to 8” monitoring wells are to be installed. Should we assume 8 wells in our proposal? YES.

10. In section 1.3.5, indoor air samples should only be sampled if VOC concentrations in soil gas samples exceed 100 times the DEP indoor air criteria. RESPOND TO RFP AS WRITTEN, BIDDERS FAILING TO RESPOND TO RFP REQUIREMENTS UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED IN THESE RESPONSES, WILL BE DEEMED NON-RESPONSIVE AND ELIMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION.

11. Please clarify what is being referred to in section 1.3.5 by the “edge criterion.” No such term exists in the Act 2 regulations or technical guidance. SEE SECTION IV.A.2 OF JUNE 8, 2002 PADEP TECHNICAL GUIDANCE MANUAL FOR EVALUATION OF IMPACTS TO SURFACE WATER.

12. Task 2 indicates that site-specific values for organic carbon are to be used for fate-and-transport modeling. However, the RFP does not require any total organic carbon testing to be performed in the soil sampling task. USE PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND IDENTIFY ASSUMPTIONS. IF DESIRED, ADD TO ALTERNATE BID/SCOPE OF WORK.


13. Task 4 indicates that a Risk Assessment Report is to be performed. However, the RFP does not include a risk assessment task, so the nature of the Risk Assessment Report cannot be determined. We recommend that this be stricken from Task 4. INCLUDE ALLOCATION FOR RISK ASSESSMENT REPORT AS AMENDMENT TO BASE BID’S SCOPE OF WORK, INCLUDE EFFORT/COST IN SECTION ENTITLED “PROPOSED CORRECTIONS/ADDITIONS TO BASE BID/SCOPE OF WORK”, AND TOTALIZE AMENDMENT COSTS AS ADDITION TO PRICE FOR BASE SCOPE OF WORK.   PROVIDE A TYPICAL COST FOR THIS TYPE AND SIZE OF PROJECT. 

14. Task 4 indicates that a Cleanup Plan is to be prepared. Without knowing the results of the site characterization and fate-and-transport evaluation, and without knowing the future development plans for the property, it is impossible to know at this time the content and required detail of the cleanup plan. We recommend that this be stricken from Task 4. INCLUDE ALLOCATION FOR RISK ASSESSMENT AS AMENDMENT TO BASE BID/SCOPE OF WORK, INCLUDE EFFORT/COST IN SECTION ENTITLED “PROPOSED CORRECTIONS/ADDITIONS TO BASE BID/SCOPE OF WORK”, AND TOTALIZE AMENDMENT COSTS AS ADDITION TO PRICE FOR BASE SCOPE OF WORK.  PROVIDE A TYPICAL COST FOR THIS TYPE AND SIZE OF PROJECT. 

15. Were there additional documents for review not provided by the RDA i.e. Phase II reports?  THE ASTM PHASE I AND II ESA REPORTS ARE AVAILABLE AT RDA OFFICE FOR REVIEW.  

16. Will the RDA consider supplying the Phase II reports and granting additional time to submit the RFP? DUE DATE FOR PROPOSALS EXTENDED TO DECEMBER 8, 2015. ALSO SEE RESPONSE IMMEDIATELY ABOVE. 

17. Is there a specific bidding format/form that we should use other than the list of items that need to be included?  RESPOND TO RFP AS WRITTEN, BIDDERS FAILING TO RESPOND TO RFP REQUIREMENTS UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED IN THESE RESPONSES, WILL BE DEEMED NON-RESPONSIVE AND ELIMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION.

18. Is permission for offsite wells already assumed or should that be part of the cost? ASSUME ACCESS.

19. If possible, provide access to the previous Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments (ESAs) completed on behalf of Legend Properties. SEE ANSWER ABOVE.

20. If the Phase II ESA is unavailable, was groundwater encountered in the overburden material (soil) and at what depth?  What depth should be assumed for the shallow groundwater monitoring well installations? SEE PHASE II ESA.

21. Section 1.1, paragraph 8 - ...assume ten or 12 post-excavation samples?  Also, are these intended to be post-excavation, or Act 2 attainment demonstration samples?  Are attainment demonstration samples to be collected as part of this work? 12.

22. Section 1.1.1 - should we follow appropriate PADEP guidance on UST/underground tank closure, where either a) impacted soils are excavated to clean soils, or b) bedrock is encountered, in which case, a groundwater investigation is triggered? YES.

23. Section 1.3.3 - What depth should we assume for the pilot boring?  What depth should we assume for the deep groundwater monitoring wells? USE PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND STATE ASSUMPTIONS. PROVIDE UNIT RATES PER FT FOR DRILLING AND WELL INSTALLATION BEYOND ASSUMPTIONS.

24. Section 1.1.1, last paragraph - should the results be compared to the Residential or Nonresidential Act 2 SHS? BOTH. REDEVELOPMENT IS MIXED USE RETAIL (FIRST FLOOR) AND RESIDENTIAL (UPPER FLOORS). 

25. Section 1.1.2 - the proposed approach does not appear to match the PADEP Land Recycling Program (LRP) Guidance Documents.  Will the RDA consider appropriate vapor intrusion sampling using the current LRP Guidance (doc #253-0300-100) or the proposed LRP Guidance (doc #261-0300-101)? BASE SCOPE OF WORK WAS APPROVED BY PADEP. IF SOLUTION/CORRECTION IS BELIEVED TECHNICALLY CORRECT, ADD AS AMENDMENT TO BASE BID’S SCOPE OF WORK, INCLUDE EFFORT/COST IN SECTION ENTITLED “PROPOSED CORRECTIONS/ADDITIONS TO BASE BID/SCOPE OF WORK”, AND TOTALIZE AMENDMENT COSTS AS ADDITION TO PRICE FOR BASE SCOPE OF WORK. 

26. Section 1.2.3, paragraph 5 - can the winning bidder treat and discharge groundwater sampling purge water through granular activated carbon, as is standard practice and approved by the PADEP, rather than containerizing and recycling purge water? AT ON-SITE AREAS, YES; AT OFF-SITE AREAS, NO; DISCHARGE MUST BE INFILTRATED SO AS NOT TO IMPACT STORM WATER. ONSITE AREAS HAVE LIMITED SURFACE AREAS FOR INFILTRATION. IDENTIFY ASSUMPTIONS. 

27. Section 1.2.4 - Same question as question for Section 1.1.2. SEE RESPONSE ABOVE for Section 1.1.2.

28. Section 1.3.3 - How deep should the requested deep pilot boring be installed?   SEE RESPONSE TO SECTION 1.3.3 (QUESTION 23) ABOVE. How many gallons of well development water should be included for disposal? USE BEST PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND IDENTIFY ASSUMPTIONS.

29. Task 3 - How many wells and which analyses should be assumed for the quarterly groundwater sampling?  ASSUME ALL WELLS FOR FIRST 4 QUARTERS/YEAR ONE, APPROXIMATELY 50% FOR YEAR TWO. Also, can the winning bidder treat and discharge groundwater sampling purge water through granular activated carbon, as is standard practice and approved by the PADEP, rather than containerizing and recycling purge water? SEE RESPONSE Section 1.2.3, paragraph 5 (QUESTION 26)  IMMEDIATELY ABOVE.

30. Please forward the Phase I and Phase II ESAs completed by AEI. 
SEE RESPONSE TO QUESTION 15 ABOVE.

31. The RFP requested a price breakdown by site, is the completion of “Table-1” sufficient or is the RDA requesting additional breakdown/cost summary? Table 1 posted here: http://www.coatesville.org/bids-rfps-rfqs/rfps BOTH REQUESTED IN RFP.

32. Can the RDA assume specific interior (liquid) and soil volumes for the 1,000 UST removal (i.e. 500 gallons of oil/water mixture and 75 tons of impacted soils)?  IDENTIFY ASSUMPTIONS IN BID.

33. Can the RDA provide depth to ground water and depth to bedrock information to assist with cost estimates for monitoring well installations, drilling depths and soil gas sampling depths? SEE ASTM PHASE II ESA FOR DEPTH TO GROUNDWATER. THEN USE BEST PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND PROVIDE ASSUMPTIONS.

34. Will Coatesville empty the contents at 105-107 E Diamond Street to provide access for the geophysical survey?  THE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY WILL WORK WITH THE REDEVELOPER AND THE CITY OF COATESVILLE DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS AND THE PROSPECTIVE CONSULTANT TO PROVIDE SUFFICIENT ACCESS FOR GEOPHYSICAL SURVEY.

35. Has 105 E Diamond St. been inspected and is it safe to perform work within this facility? BUILDING IS IN CURRENT USE BY CITY OF COATESVILLE DPW, SO ASSUME IS SAFE FOR DRILLING.

36. Can the RDA please clarify the requested number of VI locations and the number of samples from each location discussed in Section 1.2.4 (i.e. 1 sample location and 2 depths = 2 samples)? RFP CALLS FOR SHALLOW AND DEEP VAPOR POINTS SAMPLED TWICE FOR EACH BUILDING. USE BEST PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND PROVIDE ASSUMPTIONS. 

37. Please confirm that no soil samples will be collected from the monitoring well installations discussed in Section 1.3.3. PROVIDE UNIT PRICE PER SAMPLE TO COLLECT AND EVALUATE (NO ANALYTICAL COST), BUT NO QUANTITIES, IN BASE BID IN THE EVENT CONTAMINATION ENCOUNTERED AND SOIL SAMPLING REQUIRED.  

Task 1
38. Is the UST removal included in the bid? INCLUDE ALLOCATION FOR RISK ASSESSMENT REPORT AS AMENDMENT TO BASE BID’S SCOPE OF WORK, INCLUDE EFFORT/COST IN SECTION ENTITLED “PROPOSED CORRECTIONS/ADDITIONS TO BASE BID/SCOPE OF WORK”, AND TOTALIZE AMENDMENT COSTS AS ADDITION TO PRICE FOR BASE SCOPE OF WORK.   

39. Are we to assume the tank is regulated for bidding purposes? YES.

40. Do you want the bid to provide for ten or 12 post excavation samples (1.1)? 12.

41. What is depth to groundwater (1.2.3)? SEE ASTM PHASE II ESA.

42. What are the typical depths of refusal or top of rock at the site (1.2.2)? SEE ASTM PHASE II ESA.

43. What analyses should we assume for bidding purposes for “constituents of concern above the SHS?” (1.2.3) USE BEST PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND IDENTIFY ASSUMPTIONS.

44. Investigation derived wastes (IDW)- Are we to provide pricing for the disposal of IDW? YES. Have IDW characterized as hazardous during previous assessments?  NO.

45. If analytical results suggest the IDW for water can be treated, would treatment and release to the ground surface be acceptable? SEE RESPONSES ABOVE

46. For 1.2.4, Vapor Intrusion Assessment, how many residential buildings are to be assessed?  The aerial photograph suggests 7.  Please confirm. ASSUME 7.

47. 1.3.3- how can the 8 wells be placed in the soil borings in the building and selected exterior locations described in 1.3.2, when 1.3.3 requires installation of wells off-site and near Brandywine Creek? SELECTED EXTERIOR LOCATIONS INCLUDES “OFFSITE AND NEAR BRANDYWINE CREEK; USE BEST PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND PROVIDE ASSUMPTIONS. 

48. Will the Coatesville RDA assist with access agreements?  THE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY WILL WORK WITH THE REDEVELOPER AND THE CITY OF COATESVILLE DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS AND THE PROSPECTIVE CONSULTANT TO PROVIDE WRITTEN CONFIRMATION OF ACCESS.

49. For bidding purposes, how deep is the “deep pilot well?” (1.3.3) USE BEST PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND PROVIDE ASSUMPTIONS. 

50. The total number of wells appears to be 14, please confirm.ASSUME 14. IF FEWER WELLS WILL ACCOMPLISH PROJECT OBJECTIVES, PROPOSE THAT IN ALTERNATE BID /SCOPE OF WORK.

51. Task 1.2.1 –Geophysical Survey, Buildings 105/105 E Diamond Street.  For the geophysical survey to be successful the buildings must be cleared of all equipment and materials.  Will the buildings be cleared out prior to assessment?    THE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY WILL WORK WITH THE REDEVELOPER AND THE CITY OF COATESVILLE DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS AND THE PROSPECTIVE CONSULTANT TO PROVIDE SUFFICIENT ACCESS.

52. When will the buildings be demolished? AFTER RFP ACTIVITIES COMPLETE.

Task 2

53. The task description indicates that “Select wells, including wells in the source area and point of compliance wells, will be sampled and analyzed for the parameters identified above.” What analytical parameters are to be included and how many wells should we assume for bidding purposes? ASSUME 14 FOR 1ST YEAR, 7 FOR SECOND YEAR. FULL TYPICAL LIST OF PARAMETERS ANTICIPATED, USE BEST PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND PROVIDE ASSUMPTIONS. 

54. Article 1 of the contract requires work be completed within 30 days of notice to proceed and assigns a daily penalty of $50 after the 30-day time period.  Thirty days is not enough time to complete the assessment, as written.  For example, vapor intrusion assessment specifically calls for sampling in the summer and winter months.   Will the Coatesville RDA consider extending the schedule and deleting the penalties listed in the contract? PROPOSE AN ALTERNATIVE SCHEDULE AND IDENTIFY ASSUMPTIONS, IN BASE BID. 

55. There is a short turnaround time for this proposal, will an extension of the 11/10/15 deadline be considered? EXTENDED TO DECEMBER 8, 2015.

56. Is the Phase II report available?  There is crucial information regarding depth to bedrock and depth to groundwater that is needed to allow for accurate costing. YES, SEE ABOVE. 

57. Will the list of attendees to yesterday's meeting be available? YES. SUBMIT A RIGHT TO KNOW REQUEST TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO REQUEST THAT DOCUMENT.

58. A DOT project on Lincoln Hwy was mentioned yesterday, is the schedule for that project available? NOT APPLICABLE TO THIS PROJECT.

59. Is the demolition schedule of the buildings available? OCCURS AFTER RFP ACTIVITIES COMPLETE.

60. How deep is groundwater? SEE ASTM PHASE II ESA. 

61. How deep is top of bedrock? SEE ASTM PHASE II ESA.

62. Is first groundwater in overburden or bedrock? SEE ASTM PHASE II ESA.

63. Can you provide copies of the Phase I ESA and the Phase 2 ESA?  YES, SEE ABOVE.

64. Will electric be on inside the buildings during investigation? ASSUME YES.

65. What does the Downhole Geophysic survey encompass. SEE ASTM PHASE II ESA.

66. Can we please obtain a copy from you of the previous investigations (Phase I and Phase II) that were conducted for the site(s)? These are important for our planning purposes for the project, e.g. to know contaminant concentrations, depth of the shallow and deeper groundwater at the site, as well as depth and known areal extent of contamination and will go a long way in helping us to develop a credible proposal based on actual site conditions. YES, SEE ABOVE.

67. [bookmark: _GoBack]At yesterday’s site meeting, it was stated that an addendum to the RFP was available on your website, but we are unable to locate it. Can you please provide the web address for the addendum?  SEE http://www.coatesville.org/bids-rfps-rfqs/rfps

68. Your RFP (p. 2, item #5 in the proposal requirement list) states that costs are to be itemized separately per individual property; however, it is most cost-efficient to conduct each type of effort (soil borings, well installations, groundwater sampling, etc) as a whole over the entire project site. Can we presume one mobilization for the whole project per type of effort (based on a reasonable timeline), as long as we state that caveat in our proposal? YES. We would then specify the additional cost per additional mobilization as a potential additional line item. INCLUDE IN BASE BID COST. 

69. In regard to the potential UST: since it is unknown whether the potential 1,000-gallon UST is empty of product or is some percentage of full, is it acceptable for us to provide a price for cutting, cleaning, removal, and disposal of the UST itself, a second line-item for costs to identify contents (presuming it is not empty), and then a third line-item for a per-gallon price for disposal of the contents (number of gallons to be determined)? YES.

70. The first paragraph as the top of page 22 states that “Failure to complete the work within thirty (30) days of the Contractor’s receipt of the Notice to Proceed shall subject the Contractor to penalties….” Is this correct, or is this the time frame to initiate work on the project? It is highly unlikely that this schedule could be met for the completion of the work, considering the extent of the scope of work, the fact that monitoring wells cannot be sampled until 2 weeks after installation, and the fact that standard laboratory turn-around-time is 2 weeks. ? PROPOSE AN ALTERNATIVE SCHEDULE AND IDENTIFY ASSUMPTIONS, IN BASE PROPOSAL 

71. Given the extent of the information required to be submitted in response to the RFP and that we are not yet in receipt of the background documents (Phase I or Phase II), we respectfully request that the deadline for proposals be extended at least one to two weeks. EXTENDED TO DECEMBER 8, 2015.

72. Are the Phase I and Phase II reports available for the sites as noted in the RFP as completed by AEI Consultants, Inc. on the subject properties in February 2015 and March 2015? YES, SEE ABOVE.

73. What was the original proposed timeline and can this be shared?  Since the RFP states work is too completed in 30 days? PROPOSE AN ALTERNATIVE SCHEDULE AND IDENTIFY ASSUMPTIONS, IN BASE BID.

74. Provide sign-in sheet from yesterday’s walk thru. SUBMIT A RIGHT TO KNOW REQUEST TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO REQUEST THAT DOCUMENT.

75. Since the proposal is due 11/10 (Tuesday) – will this date be extended? YES, TO DECMEBER 8, 2015.

